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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

September 19, 2023

To the Honorable Chairman, Members of the Board of Directors of the Roanoke Valley Resource

Authority and Citizens of the Cities of Roanoke and Salem, the County of Roanoke and the
Town of Vinton, Virginia:

We are pleased to present the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) of the Roanoke
Valley Resource Authority (Authority) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. This audit was
conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Specifications for

Audits of Authorities, Boards and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts for
the Commonwealth of Virginia.

This report consists of management'srepresentations concerning the finances of the Authority.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and
the completeness and fairness of the presentations, including all disclosures. Management has
established a comprehensive framework of internal control to provide a reasonable basis to
make these representations. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed
anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance
that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the enclosed financial data is accurate in all material respectsand fairly
presents the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Authority. All

disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain anunderstanding of the Authority’s financial
activities have beenincluded.

The basic financial statements have been audited by our independent auditors, Robinson,
Farmer, Cox Associates, who have issued an unmodified (clean) opinion on the financial
statements of the Authority for the year ending June 30, 2023. The annual audit wasconducted
in accordance with professional standards which require that the independent auditors plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable rather than absolute, assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. The independent auditors report is
located at the front of the financial section of this report.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors
report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial

statements. This letter of transmittal isdesigned to complement the MD&A and should beread
inconjunctionwith it.

Profile of the Government

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority (Authority) was established on October 23, 1991, as a
tax-exempt political subdivision within the Commonwealth of Virginia to acquire and construct
a regional sanitary landfill and waste collection and transfer station with related treatment
facilities. The charter members are the City of Roanoke, County of Roanoke, and the Town of
Vinton. The Authority began its operations in 1993. The City of Salem joined July 1, 2016 and
RVRA assumed ownership and operational control of Salem's transfer station on November 1, 2016.

1020 Hollins Road, NE Roanoke, Virginia 24012-8011 (540) 857-5050 Fax (540) 857-5056
Web Site: www.rvra.net
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The Authority's Board of Directors consists of nine members; five are appointed by Roanoke County,
two are appointed by Roanoke City, one is appointed by Salem City, and one is appointed by the
Town of Vinton. Each member is appointed for a four-year term. Regular meetings of the Board
of Directors are normally held monthly. The Authority is administered by a Chief Executive Officer
(CEO). The CEO has the direct supervision of all employees of the Authority, the responsibility for
the operation of the Authority’s facilities, and the establishment of guidelines for efficient and
sound fiscal management.

Residents and businesses in the Cities of Roanoke and Salem, Roanoke County, and the Town of
Vinton generate approximately 300,000 tons of wastes every year with approximately 250,000
tons landfilled at the Authority’s Smith Gap Landfill (SGLF). The remaining tonnages are transported
by private haulers to another landfill, recycled, or disposed of through an alternate process. Each
locality collects its own residential trash using internal resources and are contractually obligated to
use the Authority’s facilities for disposal. Commercial and industrial solid waste is primarily
collected by commercial waste haulers. Commercial haulers, except for one as discussed later, are
not contractually obligated to deliver their solid waste to the Authority. After collection, municipal
and commercial refuse collection trucks may deliver their trash to either the Authority's Tinker
Creek Transfer Station (TCTS) in the City of Roanoke or the Salem Transfer Station (STS) in the City
of Salem. Several commercial haulers currently elect to use a private transfer station and haul their
solid waste out of the region.

Historically, the Authority utilized rail haul to transport the solid waste it received at its transfer
stations to the SGLF. However, the Authority initiated the conversion of its rail haul operations to
trucking via tractor trailers in FY’21. On April 5, 2021, the Authority began the final stages of
converting its dedicated rail spur to its Smith Gap Landfill (SGLF) to a dedicated access road. The
Authority transported the solid waste received at its transfer stations to a third-party landfill during
construction of the access road. Construction of the access road was completed in July, 2021 and
the Authority resumed transporting its municipal solid waste (MSW) to its SGLF by tractor trailers.

Additionally, in FY’22, the Authority began construction modifications to its TCTS to complete
necessary operational conversions. During construction at the TCTS, the bulk of the Authority’s
customers, both municipal and commercial, were directed to the Authority’s STS for the majority
of FY’22. Full operational use of the TCTS resumed in May 2022 and transfer station construction
modifications were completed in FY’23. The installation of scales at the SGLF is projected to be
completed in FY’24.

With the construction of the new access road to the SGLF, the Authority solicited and issued a
contract with a commercial hauler for the direct-delivery of 100,000 tons per year solid waste to
the landfill also via tractor trailers. The contract hauler delivered approximately 32,000 tons and
52,000 tons of solid waste to the Authority in FY’22 and FY’23, respectively, that the Authority had
not been receiving for several years. The direct-deliveries do not impose additional costs on the
Authority’s transfer stations or its transportation operations. At the SGLF, upon resuming
operations with the truck-delivered MSW, the trailers are now unloaded directly onto the landfill
working face without additional handling. The MSW is inspected and covered daily in a 1,200 acre,
environmentally protected landfill disposal area that meets all state and federal regulations.

Budgetary and Accounting Controls

The Authority is required to prepare and submit an annual operating budget to the Charter Members
for approval on or before April 1 of each year for the upcoming fiscal year (July 1 to June 30).
The budget is prepared by staff of the Authority and serves as the foundation for the Authority's
financial planning and control.



The Authority's accounting records are maintained on an accrual basis under which revenues are
recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred. Accounting functions are
separated to the extent possible for a small sized staff. The County of Roanoke currently is the
fiscal agent for the Authority. The accounting system the Authority is using belongs to the County
and County staff has provided support and assistance to the Authority in its accountingoperations.

Local Economy

The Authority draws from a regional labor force of approximately 300,000 within a radius of sixty
miles. The Roanoke Valley as well as the surrounding communities, are fortunate that their
economic indicators are more favorable compared to some of the neighboring localities and to
the State, but there remain formidable challenges for the Roanoke Valley; not only in the delivery
of local government and authority services, but also in maintaining our traditionally high standard
of living and quality of life.

The Economic Development Department of each locality successfully utilizes provisions under the
public/private partnership policy that allows businesses to receive assistance from them for
qualifying facility expansions and relocations. The expected return on investment in new taxes
and employment is a critical measure governing the use of public funds to assist businesses and
industries.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The Authority annually reviews the adequacy of the Replacement Reserve Requirements under the
current operating conditions, and in comparison, with industry standards. The review is done in
consultation with a professional engineer familiar with solid waste services, equipment, and
facilities as utilized by the Authority. A professional consulting engineer, external to the Authority,
reviews the plan every five years. The Authority has defined adequacy to mean that funds exist in
amounts equivalent to or exceeding the anticipated expenditures during a period of the next five
subsequent fiscal years. The Authority annually makes deposits to replacement reserves for funding
future planned expenditures. These reserves allow the Authority to establish and project an orderly
increase in tipping fees to prepare for future expenses along with annual operating costs. All funds
have been determined to be adequate to address industry costs and planning, thus allowing the
reserve funds to reflect future anticipated costs over the next five years.

Major Initiatives and Accomplishments for FY 2023

* During the year, the Roanoke Valley Resources Authority maintained financial and reserve
policies providing for the establishment of and the planned funding level of maintenance and
improvement reserve accounts for planned expenditures over a short and long-term planning
period.

* The Authority continues to maintain and own sufficient land to provide long-term disposal
capacity for its members in excess of 100 years which will be developed in phases or cells. The
long-term disposal capacity provides the Authority with the flexibility it needs to properly
evaluate emerging solid waste technologies and to allow sufficient timing to properly fund and
to ultimately transition to one or more of these technologies if feasible.

= Since its inception, the Authority has developed six landfill cells in six construction phases to-
date. Construction of Phase VI began in FY'17, was completed in FY'18, became operational in
FY'19, and remained operational through FY’23. Construction of Phase VIl was initiated in FY’23
and is projected to be completed in FY’24. Other than the initial Phase I, all funding associated
with the construction of Phases 1I-VI has been cash-funded through an established and



dedicated reserve account which continues to receive regular contributions from the
Authority's tipping fees to cash-fund subsequent cell developments.

Portions of the Smith Gap Landfill are nearing final construction grade and in accordance with
the Authority's permit, are in the process of being closed. The Authority initiated the closure
construction for seven acres of filled cells in FY'17 and subsequently completed this
construction in FY'18. The closure of this area enabled the Authority to install additional gas
collection wells completed in FY'20. All funding associated with closure construction has been
cash-funded through an established and dedicated reserve account which continues to receive
regular contributions from the Authority's tipping fees to cash-fund subsequent cell closures.

As part of the original closure plan for the Smith Gap Landfill, the Authority installed an active
gas collection and control system (GCCS) that began operations in April 2011. All funding for
the closure plan, including the GCCS, is funded through an established reserve account which
continues to receive regular contributions from tipping fees that will continue to fund
subsequent cell closure costs. The Authority had no regulatory obligation to install and operate
a GCCS until FY 2019. Because it was under no regulatory obligation to install and operate a
GCCS, the Authority became a registered member of the California Climate Action Registry
(CARs) which qualified the Authority's destruction of greenhouse gases for emission credits
which were sold on the open market to help offset the initial cost of installing the GCCS.
Collectively, the Authority generated and sold $347,230 in emissions credits. Although no
longer eligible to sell emission credits, the GCCS installed and operated by the Authority
enabled the Authority to solicit proposals for the ongoing beneficial use of the landfill gas it
collects. The Authority solicited proposals in FY’22 and entered into a contractual agreement
with BP/Archea in FY’23 to develop a renewable natural gas (RNG) project which will provide
additional revenues and simultaneously relieve the Authority of capital and operating costs
associated with the ongoing operations of this GCCS. The new RNG project is projected to
come online by FY’25.

The Authority issued $20M in financing proceeds in FY'16 & "17 through private bank financing
and $10M in additional financing proceeds through the Virginia Resource Authority (VRA) in
FY’21. The 20-yr. debt was issued in association with the Authority's "Facilities Modifications
and improvements Program” ("Program”) that includes five distinct projects:

the Connector Road Project; the Salem Transfer Station Project; the Tinker Creek Transfer
Station Project; the Smith Gap Regional Landfill Project; and the Rail Corridor Conversion
Project. The Authority initiated its VRA payments in FY’22 and completed its sixth full year of
private bank debt service payments in FY’23.

The Connector Road and Spur Road Projects have been completed and together form the
Authority’s “Transportation Corridor.” The Corridor now serves as the primary delivery system
route for tractor trailers to access the Authority's Smith Gap Landfill directly from the
interstate (I-81) in lieu of using the public road system. The Corridor provides safe, efficient
and effective routing for the Authority's service provider via tractor trailer-hauled solid waste.
It also enables the Authority to entertain the fullest use of one of its most valuable assets, the
Smith Gap Landfill. The Authority may now expand its potential customer base which would
increase landfill tonnages and associated revenues with minimal operating costs increases in
order to maximize its economies of scale. The Authority solicited, received, and awarded
contracts for the direct-delivery of an additional 100,000+ tons of commercially generated
MSW to the Smith Gap Landfill. Direct-deliveries of additional commercial waste began in
FY’22, increased to 52,000 tons in FY’23, are projected to increase to 82,000 tons in FY’24 and
eventually reach full capacity in FY’25.

The Salem Transfer Station (STS) Project, Phase |, constructed two, new top-load hoppers to
ultimately replace two compactor units. This conversion provided a more efficient load-out of



solid waste into walking floor trailers that will be hauled by tractors, directly to the Authority's
Smith Gap Landfill avoiding the previous operations’ double/triple-handling of its wastes.
Additionally, truck deliveries would be a shorter distance to the landfill saving additional
operating costs. Phase | construction was initiated in FY'17 and was completed in FY'18. The
Authority continues to evaluate its options to complete Phase |l of this project which would
include constructing a new entrance at the site; constructing a new scalehouse and residential
service area; and rerouting traffic for additional vehicle queuing space and improved ingress
and egress.

= In FY'22, the Authority authorized a new five-year transportation contract with Thompson
Trucking, effective July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2027. The second year of the transportation
contract was completed in FY’23. The contract provides the Authority with the means to
effectively and efficiently transport the solid waste it collects at its two transfer stations to
the SGLF with minimal capital outlay.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to RVRA for its annual
comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. This was the fourteenth
consecutive year that the Authority received this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
annual comprehensive financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principtes ard applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
annuai comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requ=saments and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
ceriifizala.

We wauld like to express our appreciation and gratitude to the personnel at the Authority and ir
the Depariment of Finance and Management Services at the County of Roanoke for their dedication
and support in producing this report. Appreciation is also extended to the Authority’s Board of
Directors whose continuing leadership and support is essential to the financial health of the
Authority.

7274 RpsaslioFyod-

Daniel D. Miles, P.E. Laurie Gearheart
Chief Executive Officer Treasurer
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RoBiNsON, FARMER, Cox AssociaTes, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

CPAs | CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of the Board
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority
Roanoke, Virginia

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Roanoke
Valley Resource Authority, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the business-type activities of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority, as of June 30,
2023, and the changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards,
and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Roanoke Valley
Resource Authority, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Roanoke Valley Resource
Authority’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.



Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, Governmental Auditing Standards, and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and
Commissions will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Governmental Auditing
Standards, and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards, and Commissions, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and schedules related to pension and OPEB funding be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

-10-



Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information
exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 19,
2023, on our consideration of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

‘?Zyo’&/rw- ) %wm, (o Mrsociake.

Blacksburg, Virginia
September 19, 2023
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Roanoke Valley Resource Authority
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

The management discussion and analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the financial
statements of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority (the Authority) for the year ended
June 30, 2023. The MD&A represents management’s examination and analysis of the
Authority’s financial condition and performance and should be read in conjunction with the
Authority’s basic financial statements which immediately follow this section.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporting model
adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board in their Statement No. 34 Basic
Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local
Governments (GASB 34).

Financial Highlights

e The total assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Authority exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2023 by $2,817,278 (Net
Position). Of this amount, $(2,874,275) is classified as unrestricted net position,
indicating that no funds were available for discretionary purposes.

e During the year, the Authority’s total revenues were $1,386,933 less than the
$17,484,034 of expenses.

e The Authority had outstanding debt of $23,445,950 (exclusive of unamortized
premiums) at June 30, 2023.

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements

The Authority’s financial report includes three financial statements: the Statement of Net
Position; the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position; and the
Statement of Cash Flows. These statements are prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as promulgated by the
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The financial statements provide information about the Authority as a whole using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is the method used by most private-sector enterprises.
In addition to the basic financial statements, the report includes Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements and Required Supplemental Information.

e The Statement of Net Position reports assets and deferred outflows, liabilities and
deferred inflows and the difference between them. The entire equity section is
combined to report total net position and displayed in three broad components - net
investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position.

e The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position present the results
of the business activities over the course of the fiscal year and information about how
the net position changed during the year. Revenues and expenses are categorized as
either operating or non-operating based upon definitions provided by GASB’s 33 and 34.
Operating revenue consists of tipping fees, recycling fees, mulch revenue, and other
miscellaneous fees. Nonoperating revenues consist of net increase in fair value of
investments, interest income, gains on disposals of property and equipment, and
miscellaneous income.

-12-



One of the main goals of these two statements is to report the Authority’s net position and
changes that affected net position during the fiscal year. The change in the Authority’s net
position is one way to measure the Authority’s financial health, or financial position.
Increases and decreases in net position are indicators of whether the Authority’s financial
health is improving or deteriorating. These statements allow readers to answer the question:
“Is the Authority’s financial position, as a whole, better or worse as a result of the year’s
activities?” As noted in the financial statements, the Authority’s financial condition
deteriorated by $1,386,933 during the fiscal year. This decrease was largely due to a
$2,172,148 increase in total landfill closure liability costs.

e The Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting
from operational, capital and related financing, and investing activities. This statement
presents cash receipts and cash disbursement information without consideration of the
earning event, when an obligation arises, or depreciation of capital assets.

Notes to the basic financial statements - The notes to the basic financial statements
provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the basic financial statements. The notes present information about the Authority’s
accounting policies, significant account balances and activities, material risks, obligations,
commitments, contingencies and subsequent events, if any.

Financial Analysis of the Authority as a Whole

The following comparative condensed Statement of Net Position provides an analysis of the
change in financial position from the previous fiscal year.

Statement of Net Position

The following table reflects the condensed Summary of Net Position:

FY 2023 FY 2022

Current and other assets S 18,514,750 17,974,603
Capital assets, net 30,269,356 31,808,192

Total assets 48,784,106 49,782,795
Deferred outflows of resources 593,699 859,380
Current liabilities 2,854,948 2,679,933
Noncurrent liabilities 43,005,896 42,301,641

Total liabilities 45,860,844 44,981,574
Deferred inflows of resources 699,683 1,456,390
Net investment in capital assets 5,691,553 6,236,076
Unrestricted (2,874,275) (2,031,865)
Total net position S 2,817,278 S 4,204,211

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority’s
financial position. In the case of the Authority, assets and deferred outflows of resources
exceed liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $2,817,278 at the close of fiscal year
2023. This is a decrease from last year’s net position by $1,386,933.
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A portion of the Authority’s net position, 202.02%, reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g. land, buildings, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that are outstanding. The Authority uses these capital assets to provide services to
customers; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. The Authority’s
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, if applicable, and it should
be noted that the resources needed to repay any debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

A portion of the Authority’s net position, (102.02)%, represents resources that are not
subject to restrictions on how they may be used. A negative balance indicates that no funds
were available for discretionary purposes.

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The following table shows the revenue and expenses of the Authority:

FY 2023 FY 2022

Revenues

Charges for services S 15,655,286 ) 15,193,858
Nonoperating Revenues:

Interest income 333,864 27,500

Gain on sale of capital assets 107,951 299,355

Total revenues 16,097,101 15,520,713
Expenses

Operating expense

Salaries and benefits (3,138,793) (3,188,054)

Landfill closure costs (1,941,868) 230,280

Other operating expenses (8,302,563) (7,840,339)

Depreciation (3,514,695) (3,321,538)
Non-operating expenses:

Interest expense (586,115) (640,213)
Total expenses (17,484,034) (14,759,864)
Change in net position (1,386,933) 760,849
Total net position at beginning of year 4,204,211 3,443,362
Total net position at end of year S 2,817,278 ) 4,204,211

The Authority’s total revenues increased over the prior year by 3.71% to $16,097,101 due to
increased commercial tipping tonnage revenues. Tipping fee collections were 3.60% higher
than the prior year. Interest income increased by $306,364 as a result of higher investment
yields. The expenses for all programs and services increased by 18.46% in fiscal year 2023,
primarily due to inflationary costs of diesel, contracted repairs, and municipal waste freight
costs.
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Approximately 96.78% of the Authority’s fiscal year 2023 revenue is from operating revenue
consisting of tipping fees and recycling income; 0.47% is miscellaneous consisting primarily
of mulch sales and insurance recoveries; 2.08% is from non-operating revenue consisting of
interest income; and 0.67% from proceeds provided by the sale of assets. Operational
expenses for fiscal year 2023 account for 96.65% of total expenses, with the remaining 3.35%
of expenses from interest expense.

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2023, the Authority had invested $30,269,356, net of accumulated
depreciation, in a variety of capital assets including land, landfill development costs,
buildings, and equipment. The Authority’s investment in capital assets for the current year
was $2,012,333. The majority of this investment was composed of the following:

e (1) Capital Project Completion (Tinker Creek Transfer Station)

e (5) Heavy equipment purchases ((1) Carter Bulldozer,(2) GMC 7500 Dump Trucks, (1)
Fully Tilt Dump Trailer, and (2) Engine Replacements)

e (2) Technology purchases (Automation of Pump Panel)

Included in this year’s investment total is construction in progress related to the
construction of the Smith Gap Phase VIl Expansion ($723,452), Smith Gap Scales ($191,634),
and Leachate Load Out ($3,833). Disposals in the current year totaled $220,409 and include
a 1994 Cat 924H Wheel Loader and a Titan 48 foot Walking Floor Trailer.

Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 in the notes
to the basic financial statements. Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation are
illustrated in the following table:

FY 2023 FY 2022

Land $ 5,558,682 S 5,558,682
Landfill and Corridor Access 32,955,965 28,754,176
Transfer Station 13,395,786 13,355,666
Equipment 16,824,282 16,132,823
Construction in progress 918,919 4,060,363
Subtotal 69,653,634 67,861,710
Accumulated depreciation (39,384,278) (36,053,518)
Totals S 30,269,356 S 31,808,192

Long -Term Debt

At June 30, 2023, the Authority had $23,445,950 of bonded debt issues outstanding. This
debt was used to support the development of improved long-term, operational efficiencies
due to the 2017 addition of the City of Salem as a member of the Authority as well as to
convert the Authority’s operations from the use of a rail-haul transportation system to a
tractor-trailer trucking transportation system. Additional information related to long - term
liabilities can be found in Note 4 in the notes to the basic financial statements.

-15-



Factors Influencing Future Budgets

Key factors that are expected to impact future budgets include:

Ability to provide competitive tipping fees and improved economies of scale with direct
deliveries of commercial waste to landfill
Improved operational efficiencies and new revenue opportunities resulting from the
completion of the Transportation Corridor project
Continued uncertainty regarding the economy subsequent to the COVID-19 pandemic
Projected increases in health insurance premiums and retirement contribution rates
assessed by the Virginia Retirement System
Expansion of the open landfill
Estimated landfill closure and post-closure costs
Renewal and replacement needs; costs of plant and equipment
Closed landfill groundwater monitoring and remediation costs
Interest rates
Issuance of debt
Energy and fuel costs
Regulatory changes
Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, potential
investors and creditors with a general overview of the Authority’s finances and to
demonstrate accountability for the resources it receives. If you have questions about this
report or need additional financial information, contact the Chief Executive Officer,
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority, 1020 Hollins Road, N.E., Roanoke, VA 24012, telephone
(540-857-5050), or visit the Authority’s web site at www.rvra.net.
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Exhibit 1

Page 1 of 2
ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 12,455,030
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (note 1) 781,364
Cash held with others (note 1) 273,826
Accounts receivable 1,483,264
Interest receivable 12,532
Inventory 205,429
Total current assets 15,211,445
Noncurrent assets:
Investments (note 2) 3,303,305
Non-depreciable capital assets (note 3) 6,477,601
Depreciable capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation (note 3) 23,791,755
Total noncurrent assets 33,572,661
Total assets 48,784,106
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related items (note 5) 514,278
OPEB related items (note 6, 7 and 8) 79,421
Total deferred outflows of resources 593,699

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Exhibit 1

Page 2 of 2
ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Vouchers payable 451,789
Construction and retainage payables 265,833
Accrued payroll 46,574
Accrued interest 212,239
Compensated absences, current portion (note 4) 129,363
Locality compensation payments payable, current portion (note 4) 189,981
Accrued landfill closure, current portion (notes 4 and 9) 225,167
Revenue bonds payable (note 4) 1,334,002
Total current liabilities 2,854,948
Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences, net of current portion (note 4) 173,184
Net OPEB liabilities (notes 4, 6, 7 and 8) 291,647
Net pension liability (notes 4 and 5) 1,346,095
Accrued landfill closure, net of current portion (notes 4 and 9) 17,625,619
Revenue bonds payable, net (note 4) 23,569,351
Total noncurrent liabilities 43,005,896
Total liabilities 45,860,844
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension related items (note 5) 532,666
OPEB related items (note 6, 7, 8) 167,017
Total deferred inflows of resources 699,683
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,691,553
Unrestricted (2,874,275)
Total net position 2,817,278

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Exhibit 2

ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES

Tipping fees 15,522,938
Recycling revenue 56,102
Mulch revenue 45,883
Miscellaneous fees 30,363
Total operating revenues 15,655,286
OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 3,138,793
Landfill closure and post closure costs (note 9) 1,941,868
Other operating expenses 8,302,563
Depreciation 3,514,695
Total operating expenses 16,897,919
Operating income (loss) (1,242,633)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest income 333,864
Interest expense (586,115)
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 107,951
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (144,300)
Change in net position (1,386,933)
Total net position, beginning of year 4,204,211
Total net position, end of year 2,817,278

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.




Exhibit 3

ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Statement of Cash Flows
For Year Ended June 30, 2023

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from customers S 15,507,430
Payments to suppliers (8,179,376)
Payments to employees (3,212,140)

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities S 4,115,914

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Purchase and construction of capital assets S (1,967,657)
Proceeds from sales of capital assets 144,425
Principal paid on locality compensation payments (195,435)
Principal paid on revenue bonds (1,120,827)
Interest paid on locality compensation payments (6,157)
Interest paid on revenue bonds (778,118)

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities S (3,923,769)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest income S 323,772
Purchase of investments (114,489)
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities S 209,283
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents S 401,428
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year, including restricted amounts 13,108,792
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year, including restricted amounts S 13,510,220

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss) S (1,242,633)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 3,514,695
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources:

Accounts receivable (147,856)
Inventory 132,724
Prepaid items 994
Deferred outflows of resources 265,681
Vouchers payable 112,858
Accrued payroll 5,999
Compensated absences 34,644
Landfill closure liability 1,818,479
Net OPEB liabilities (76,210)
Net pension liability 453,246
Deferred inflows of resources (756,707)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities S 4,115,914

Noncash items:
Assets with a net book value of $36,474 were sold during the year for $144,425.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
as of June 30, 2023

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

A. Description of Entity

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority (the Authority) was established on October 23, 1991 as a
tax exempt political subdivision within the Commonwealth of Virginia to acquire and construct a
regional sanitary landfill and waste collection and transfer station with related treatment
facilities. The charter members are the City of Roanoke, County of Roanoke (the County) and the
Town of Vinton (the Town). The City of Salem joined the Authority on July 1, 2016.

Prior to October 23, 1991, the operations of the Authority were accounted for as an enterprise
fund of the County of Roanoke. As of October 23, 1991, under agreement between the City of
Roanoke, the County and the Town, the County transferred all existing assets and liabilities to
the Authority. The Authority assumed ownership and operational control of Salem’s transfer
station on November 1, 2016.

Under terms of an agreement with the Roanoke Valley Solid Waste Management Board (the
Management Board), certain assets and liabilities were transferred to the Authority, effective
October 1, 1993. The terms of the agreement call for the Authority to monitor an old landfill site
of the Roanoke Valley Regional Solid Waste Management Board during the postclosure care
period.

B. Basis of Accounting

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority operates as an enterprise fund, and its accounts are
maintained on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized
when earned, and expenses are recorded as liabilities when incurred, without regard to receipt
or payment of cash. The Authority accrues revenue for services rendered but not yet billed at
the end of the fiscal year.

The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with the Authority’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the Authority are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses include the
cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Remainder of page left blank intentionally.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

C.

E.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows or Resources:

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position includes a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net assets that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense)
until then. The Authority has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is
comprised of certain items related to pension and OPEB. For more detailed information on these
items, reference the related notes.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position includes a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net assets
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time. The Authority has one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this
category. Certain items related to pension and OPEB are reported as deferred inflows of
resources. For more detailed information on these items, reference the related notes.

Basic Financial Statements

Since the Authority is only engaged in business-type activities, it is required to present only the
financial statements required for enterprise funds. For the Authority, the basic financial
statements and required supplementary information consist of:

« Management’s Discussion and Analysis

» Enterprise fund financial statements

Statement of Net Position

- Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to the Financial Statements

« Required Supplementary Information
- Schedules of OPEB and Pension related items

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost or historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

E.

Capital Assets (Continued)

Maintenance, repairs and minor renewals are charged to expense as incurred, while major
renewals and replacements are capitalized. Upon the sale or retirement of a capital asset, the
cost and related accumulated depreciation, if applicable, are eliminated from the related
accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in income.

The Authority defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $1,000
and an estimated useful life of at least one year. Assets are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives. Equipment, furniture and fixtures are depreciated over three to ten years.
Buildings and structures, including the transfer station, are depreciated over 35 years. Landfill
and corridor access assets are depreciated over fifteen to thirty-five years. Landfill cell
development costs are depreciated over the expected life of the cell.

Interest on Indebtedness

Interest costs of the Authority are treated as nonoperating expenses.

. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments

Investments with a maturity of less than one year when purchased, non-negotiable certificates of
deposit, and other nonparticipating investments and external investment pools are stated at
amortized cost or at fair value. Investments with a maturity greater than one year when
purchased are stated at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
investment in an orderly transaction at year end.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

A budget is prepared for information, fiscal planning purposes, and to provide the basis for
setting user rates. None of the participating entities are required to approve the budget. The
budget is adopted as a planning document and is not a legal control on expenses.

. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Primary
customers consist of the City of Roanoke, City of Salem, County of Roanoke, Town of Vinton and
their respective citizens, and local businesses. Management does not feel that an allowance of
balances is necessary so the direct write off method of accounting for uncollectible accounts is
used.

Inventory

Inventory is recorded using the first-in, first-out method (FIFO) and is valued at cost. Inventory
consists of parts and supplies utilized in the daily operation of the landfill.
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 1— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

L. Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing its financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect certain reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, and reported revenues and expenses. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

M. Net Position

The difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources is called net position. Net position is comprised of three components: net
investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted.

e Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances of bonds, notes, and other debt that
are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are included
in this component of net position.

e Restricted net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources related to those assets. Assets are reported as restricted when
constraints are placed on asset use either by external parties or by law through
constitutional provision or enabling legislation.

e Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that does not meet the definition of the two
preceding categories.

Sometimes the Authority will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g.
restricted bond and grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the
amounts to report as restricted - net position and unrestricted - net position in the financial
statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are
considered to be applied. It is the Authority’s policy to consider restricted - net position to have
been depleted before unrestricted - net position is applied.

N. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the statement of net position at face value,
net of any applicable premiums and discounts.

0. Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences consists of unpaid accumulated vacation and sick leave
balances. The liability is based on the sick leave and the vacation leave accumulated at June 30.
Limited vacation and sick leave may be accumulated until retirement or termination.
Accumulated sick leave is paid at a fixed daily rate and accumulated vacation is paid at the
employee’s current wage upon retirement or termination.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: (Continued)

P.

Accrued Landfill Closure

Accrued landfill closure represents the estimated liability for closure and postclosure costs for
the landfill sites. This includes the cost of any equipment and facilities to be installed near or
after the date of landfill closure for purposes of closure, the cost of landfill capping, and the cost
of monitoring and maintaining the sites during the postclosure period. A total estimate of these
expenses is made and updated on a periodic basis and expenses are charged to current period
usage of the landfill site. Current cost of landfill closure and postclosure care is an estimate and
subject to change resulting from inflation, deflation, technology, or changes in applicable laws or
regulations.

Funding Requirements

The Cities, County and the Town are responsible for their pro rata share, based on population, of
any year-end operating deficit or capital expenditures, if additional funding is required. The
Authority is responsible for paying all outstanding debt.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Authority’s Retirement Plan and the additions to/deductions from the
Authority’s Retirement Plan’s net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as
they were reported by the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net VRS related OPEB liabilities, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to the OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the VRS GLI OPEB Plan and the additions to/deductions from the VRS
OPEB Plans’ net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis as they were reported
by VRS. In addition, benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

Restricted Assets

Deposits totaling $781,364 have been restricted by applicable bond agreements for the
construction of landfill cell(s), an access road and related items.

Cash Held with Others

Deposits with Roanoke County and Roanoke City of $273,826 have been recorded in the
accompanying financial statements as cash held with others. These deposits were required to
assure the timely construction and completion of improvements in accordance with approved
plans. Such funds will be returned upon the successful completion of current construction
projects.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 2—Deposits and Investments:

Deposits - The County of Roanoke maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by
all County funds, component units and entities for which the County is the fiscal agent. The
Authority participates in this pool and at June 30, 2023, the carrying value of the Authority’s
deposits with banks and savings institutions was $1,231,135. Deposits with banks are covered by
Federal depository insurance and collateralized in accordance with the Virginia Security for Public
Deposits Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia. Under the Act, banks and savings
institutions holding public deposits in excess of the amount insured by the FDIC must pledge
collateral to the Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury Board. Financial Institutions may choose
between two collateralization methodologies and depending upon that choice, will pledge collateral
that ranges in the amounts from 50% to 130% of excess deposits. Accordingly, all deposits are
considered fully collateralized.

Investments - Statutes authorize local governments and other public bodies to invest in obligations of
the United States or agencies thereof, obligations of the Commonwealth of Virginia or political
subdivisions thereof, obligations of the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development
(World Bank), the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, “prime quality”
commercial paper that has received at least two of the following ratings: P-1 by Moody’s Investors
Service, Inc.; A-1 by Standard & Poor’s; or F1 by Fitch Ratings, Inc. (Section 2.2-4502), bankers’
acceptances, repurchase agreements, and the State Treasurer’s Local Government Investment Pool
(LGIP).

Information related to the County of Roanoke pooled account is presented in the audited financial
statements of the County of Roanoke and can be obtained from the Director of Finance and
Management Services, County of Roanoke, 5204 Bernard Drive, Suite 300E, Roanoke, Virginia 24018;
telephone 540-772-2020 or visit the County’s web site at www.roanokecountyva.gov.

Custodial Credit Risk (Investments)

The Authority’s investment policy provides that securities purchased for the Authority shall be held
by the Authority Treasurer or by the Treasurer’s custodian. If held by a custodian, the securities
must be in the Authority’s name or in the custodian’s nhame and identifiable on the custodian’s books
as belonging to the Authority. Further, if held by a custodian, the custodian must be a third party,
not a counterparty (buyer or seller) to the transaction. At June 30, 2023, all of the Authority’s
investments were held in accordance with this policy.

Credit Risk of Debt Securities

The Authority’s investment policy for credit risk is consistent with the investments allowed by
statute as detailed above.

The Authority’s debt investments as of June 30, 2023 were rated by Standard & Poor’s and/or an
equivalent national rating organization and the ratings are presented below using the Standard and
Poor’s rating scale.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 2—Deposits and Investments: (Continued)

Credit Risk of Debt Securities (Continued)

Authority's Rated Debt Investments' Values

Fair Quality Ratings

Rated Debt Investments AAAmM Not rated

Roanoke County Treasurer's Investment Pool S - S 14,801,026

State Non-arbitrage Pool (SNAP) 781,364 -
Total S 781,364 S 14,801,026

The Roanoke County Investment Pool is not rated; however, underlying investments in the pool are
rated. Those ratings along with additional information concerning the pool are presented in the
Roanoke County, Virginia Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, a copy of which may be requested
from: County of Roanoke, 5204 Bernard Drive, Suite 300E, Roanoke, Virginia 24018; telephone 540-
772-2020 or by visiting the County’s web site at www.roanokecountyva.gov.

External Investment Pools

The value of the positions in the external investment pools is the same as the value of the pool
shares. As SNAP is not SEC registered, regulatory oversight of the pool rests with the Virginia State
Treasury. SNAP is an amortized cost basis portfolio. There are no withdrawal limitations or
restrictions imposed on participants in SNAP. As the Roanoke County Investment Pool is not SEC
registered, regulatory oversight of the pool rests with the Roanoke County Board of Supervisors. The
County of Roanoke does not impose any redemption restrictions on the Authority.

Interest Rate Risk

The Authority’s policy with regard to interest rate risk requires that all investments mature within
five years of their purchase date. The policy further requires maturity scheduling be timed to
anticipated need and scheduled to coincide with projected cash flow needs. All funds shall be
considered short-term except those reserved for capital projects. Investment maturities presented
below are based on the maturity dates for individual investments held within the pool as allocated
based on the Authority’s percentage of funds invested in the pool.

Investment Maturities (in years)

Investment Type Fair Value 1 Year 1-5 Years
Roanoke County Investment Pool S 14,801,026 S 11,497,721  § 3,303,305
SNAP 781,364 781,364 -
Totals S 15,582,390 $ 12,279,085 § 3,303,305




ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 2—Deposits and Investments: (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The Authority has
measured fair value of the Roanoke County Investment Pool investments, as reported in Note 2, at
the net asset value (NAV).

Note 3—Capital Assets:

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2022 Increases Decreases June 30, 2023

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land S 5,558,682 S - S - S 5,558,682
Construction in Progress 4,060,363 1,060,345 (4,201,789) 918,919
Total capital assets not being depreciated S 9,619,045 S 1,060,345 S (4,201,789) S 6,477,601

Capital assets being depreciated:

Landfill S 28,754,176 S 4,201,789 S - $ 32,955,965
Transfer Station (Building and Structure) 13,355,666 40,120 - 13,395,786
Equipment 16,132,823 911,868 (220,409) 16,824,282

Total capital assets being depreciated S 58,242,665 S 5,153,777 § (220,409) S 63,176,033

Accumulated depreciation:

Landfill S (16,604,561) S (1,549,638) S - S (18,154,199)
Transfer Station (Building and Structure) (6,839,881) (377,671) - (7,217,552)
Equipment (12,609,076)  (1,587,386) 183,935  (14,012,527)

Total accumulated depreciation S (36,053,518) $ (3,514,695) S 183,935 §$ (39,384,278)

Total capital assets being depreciated, net S 22,189,147 $ 1,639,082 S  (36,474) $ 23,791,755
Total capital assets, net $ 31,808,192 S 2,699,427 S (4,238,263) S 30,269,356

Remainder of page left blank intentionally.
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Note 4—Long-Term Liabilities:

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year are as follows:

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1, 2022 Additions Reductions June 30, 2023 One Year
Direct Borrowings -
Revenue Bonds S 24,566,777 S $ (1,120,827) § 23,445,950 $ 1,158,253
Bond premium 1,644,698 (187,295) 1,457,403 175,749
Locality Compensation Payments 385,416 (195,435) 189,981 189,981
Compensated Absences 267,903 148,296 (113,652) 302,547 129,363
Accrued Landfill Closure
and Postclosure (Note 9) 16,032,307 2,028,719 (210,240) 17,850,786 225,167
Net OPEB Liabilities 367,857 108,697 (184,907) 291,647
Net Pension Liability 892,849 980,992 (527,746) 1,346,095
S 44,157,807 S§ 3,266,704 S (2,540,102) § 44,884,409 $ 1,878,513

On January 1, 2023, the Authority established an irrevocable standby letter of credit with Truist Bank
in the amount of $11,571,560 to provide partial financial assurance for the closure and post-closure
monitoring of landfills and transfer stations operated by the Authority. The standby letter of credit
does not carry an interest rate, which will be determined if funds are drawn against same. To date,
no amounts have been drawn on this letter of credit. The standby letter of credit expires on January

1, 2024.

All liabilities are liquidated by operating funds.
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Note 4—Long-Term Liabilities: (Continued)

Details of the Authority's outstanding long-term liabilities at June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Final Amount of Amount
Interest Installment Maturity Original Balance Due Within
Type Rates Amounts Date Issue Due One Year
Direct Borrowings
Revenue Bonds
Solid Waste Revenue Bond Series 2017A 2.50% $42,925-$69,025 (a+) 7/15/2037 $ 1,100,000 $ 825,590 S 49,872
Solid Waste Revenue Bond Series 2017B 2.65%(v) $340,000-$565,000 (a+)  7/15/2037 8,900,000 7,100,000 390,000
Solid Waste Revenue Bond Series 2016 2.50% $390,226-$627,504 (a+) 11/1/2036 10,000,000 7,505,360 453,381
Solid Waste Revenue Bond Series 2021 4.125-5.125% $250,000-$610,000 (a+) 10/1/2041 8,250,000 8,015,000 265,000
Total Revenue Bonds $ 23,445,950 $ 1,158,253
Add: Unamortized premium on
VRA 2021 Spring Pool n/a 10/1/2041 1,837,620 $ 1,457,403 S 175,749
Total Revenue Bonds and Unamortized Premium $ 24,903,353 $ 1,334,002
Locality Compensation Payments:
City of Salem 2011 Bond 2.14% $189,981-$219,069 (a+) 10/1/2023 1,644,381 S 189,981 S 189,981
Other Long-Term Obligations:
Compensated absences S 302,547 S 129,363
Accrued landfill closure liability 17,850,786 225,167
Net OPEB liabilities 291,647
Net pension liability 1,346,095
Total Other Long-Term Obligations $ 19,791,075 $ 354,530
Total Long-Term Liabilities S 44,884,409 $ 1,878,513

City of Salem Bond was issued to purchase the Salem solid waste facilities and equipment. Solid Waste Revenue Bonds were issued for the construction of a

landfill, transfer station, and related equipment.

(a+)-annual principalinstallments shown, does not include semi-annualinterest instalments

(v) - Interest rate to be adjusted on July 15, 2027 to each five year Treasury rate plus 0.25%
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Note 4—Long-Term Liabilities: (Continued)

Annual requirements to amortize long-term obligations and the related interest are as follows:

Direct Borrowings Direct Borrowing
Year Ending Revenue Bonds Payments

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest
2024 S 1,158,253 § 742,294 $ 189,981 S 2,033
2025 1,195,994 705,120
2026 1,229,057 666,718
2027 1,272,451 627,014
2028 1,316,184 585,742

2029-2033 7,239,394 2,255,035

2034-2038 7,744,617 1,051,115

2039-2042 2,290,000 194,081 - -
Total S 23,445,950 $ 6,827,119 S 189,981 $ 2,033

Note 5—Pension Plan:

Plan Description

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the Authority are automatically covered by the
Roanoke County Pension Plan. This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan administered by the
Virginia Retirement System (the System) along with plans for other employer groups in the
Commonwealth of Virginia. Members earn one month of service credit for each month they are
employed and for which they and their employer pays contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to
purchase prior service, based on specific criteria as defined in the Code of Virginia, as amended.
Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes prior public service, active military service,
certain periods of leave, and previously refunded service.

Benefit Structures

The System administers three different benefit structures for covered employees - Plan 1, Plan 2 and
Hybrid. Each of these benefit structures has different eligibility criteria, as detailed below.

a. Employees with a membership date July 1, 2010, vested as of January 1, 2013, and have not
taken a refund, are covered under Plan 1, a defined benefit plan. Non-hazardous duty
employees are eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit beginning at age 65 with at least
5 years of service credit or age 50 with at least 30 years of service credit. Non-hazardous duty
employees may retire with a reduced benefit as early as age 55 with at least 5 years of
service credit or age 50 with at least 10 years of service credit.
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Note 5—Pension Plan: (Continued)

b. Employees with a membership date from July 1, 2010 to December 31, 2013, that have not
taken a refund or employees with a membership date prior to July 1, 2010 and not vested
before January 1, 2013, are covered under Plan 2, a defined benefit plan. Non-hazardous duty
employees are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning at their normal social security
retirement age with at least 5 years of service credit or when the sum of their age plus
service credit equals 90. Non-hazardous duty employees may retire with a reduced benefit as
early as age 60 with at least 5 years of service credit.

c. Non-hazardous duty employees with a membership date on or after January 1, 2014 are
covered by the Hybrid Plan combining the features of a defined benefit plan and a defined
contribution plan. Plan 1 and Plan 2 members also had the option of opting into this plan
during the election window held January 1 - April 30, 2014 with an effective date of July 1,
2014. Employees covered by this plan are eligible for an unreduced benefit beginning at their
normal social security retirement age with at least 5 years of service credit, or when the sum
of their age plus service credit equals 90. Employees may retire with a reduced benefit as
early as age 60 with at least 5 years of service credit. For the defined contribution
component, members are eligible to receive distributions upon leaving employment, subject
to restrictions.

Average Final Compensation and Service Retirement Multiplier

The VRS defined benefit is a lifetime monthly benefit based on a retirement multiplier as a
percentage of the employee’s average final compensation multiplied by the employee’s total service
credit. Under Plan 1, average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 36 consecutive
months of highest compensation and the multiplier is 1.70% for non-hazardous duty employees.
Under Plan 2, average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 60 consecutive months of
highest compensation and the retirement multiplier is 1.65% for non-hazardous duty employees.
Under the Hybrid Plan, average final compensation is the average of the employee’s 60 consecutive
months of highest compensation and the multiplier is 1.00%. For members who opted into the Hybrid
Retirement Plan from Plan 1 or Plan 2, the applicable multipliers for those plans will be used to
calculate the retirement benefit for service credited in those plans.

Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in Retirement and Death and Disability Benefits

Retirees with an unreduced benefit or with a reduced benefit with at least 20 years of service credit
are eligible for an annual COLA beginning July 1 after one full calendar year from the retirement
date. Retirees with a reduced benefit and who have less than 20 years of service credit are eligible
for an annual COLA beginning on July 1 after one calendar year following the unreduced retirement
eligibility date. Under Plan 1, the COLA cannot exceed 5.00%. Under Plan 2 and the Hybrid Plan, the
COLA cannot exceed 3.00%. The VRS also provides death and disability benefits. Title 51.1 of the
Code of Virginia, as amended, assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
General Assembly of Virginia.

Contributions

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by §51.1-145 of the Code of Virginia,
as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by
the Virginia General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5.00% of their compensation
toward their retirement.
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Note 5—Pension Plan: (Continued)

Contributions (Continued)

The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the
year ended June 30, 2023 was 15.97% of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an
actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021.

This rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. Contributions to the pension plan from the Authority were $305,015 and $262,991
for the years ended June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022, respectively.

Net Pension Liability

At June 30, 2023, the Authority reported a liability of $1,346,095 for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability. The Authority’s net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022. The
total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation performed as of June 30, 2021 and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30,
2022. The Authority’s proportionate share of same was calculated using the average creditable
compensation as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 as a basis for allocation. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, the
Authority’s proportion was 3.5672% and 4.0387%, respectively.

Actuarial Assumptions - General Employees

The total pension liability for employees in the Authority’s Retirement Plan was based on an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the
following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2022.

Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases, including inflation 3.50% - 5.35%
Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment

expenses, including inflation

All Others (Non-10 Largest) - Non-Hazardous Duty: 15% of deaths are assumed to be service related

Pre-Retirement:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for
males; 105% of rates for females set forward 2 years

Post-Retirement:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Healthy Retiree Rates projected generationally; 110% of
rates for males; 105% of rates for females set forward 3 years

Post-Disablement:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally; 95% of rates for
males set back 3 years; 90% of rates for females set back 3 years
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Note 5—Pension Plan: (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions - General Employees (Continued)

Beneficiaries and Survivors:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Contingent Annuitant Rates projected generationally; 110%
of rates for males and females set forward 2 years

Mortality Improvements:
Rates projected generationally with Modified MP-2020 Improvement Scale that is 75% of the
MP-2020 rates

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the
change in the discount rate, which was based on the VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019.
Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as
follows:

All Others (Non-10 Largest) - Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post- Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. For

retirement healthy, and disabled) future mortality improvements, replace load with a
modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020

Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set

separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid;
changed final retirement age

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and
service decrement through 9 years of service

Disability Rates No change

Salary Scale No change

Line of Duty Disability No change

Discount Rate No change
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Note 5—Pension Plan: (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension System investments was determined using a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension System investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Weighted

Arithmetic Average

Long-term Long-term

Target Expected Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation  Rate of Return  Rate of Return*
Public Equity 34.00% 5.71% 1.94%
Fixed Income 15.00% 2.04% 0.31%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 4.78% 0.67%
Real Assets 14.00% 4.47% 0.63%
Private Equity 14.00% 9.73% 1.36%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.73% 0.22%
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 3.00% 6.55% 0.20%
Total 100.00% 5.33%
Inflation 2.50%
Expected arithmetic nominal return** 7.83%

* The above allocation provides a one-year expected return of 7.83%. However, one-year returns do
not take into account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term
expected return for the System, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under
various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various time periods that
ultimately provide a median return of 6.72%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.

**0On October 10, 2019, the VRS Board elected a long-term rate of return of 6.75% which was roughly

at the 40% percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation at that time,
providing a median return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.
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Note 5—Pension Plan: (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per
the VRS Statutes and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding
policy at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by
the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate. Consistent with the phased-in funding provided by
the General Assembly for state and teacher employer contributions; the Authority was also provided
with an opportunity to use an alternative employer contribution rate. For the year ended June 30,
2023, the alternate rate was the employer contribution rate used in FY 2012 or 100% of the
actuarially determined employer contribution rate from the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuations,
whichever was greater. From July 1, 2022 on, participating employers are assumed to contribute
100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

Sensitivity of the Authority’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension liability using the
discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
(5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

Rate
1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Authority Net Pension Liability (Asset) S 2,824,314 S 1,346,095 S 134,953

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Authority’s recognized pension expense of $232,354. Since
there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the pension
expense was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion and from differences between
employer contributions and the proportionate share of employer contributions.
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Note 5—Pension Plan: (Continued)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to Pensions (Continued)

At June 30, 2023, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 16,254 S 75,434
Changes in assumptions 193,009
Changes in proportion and differences between
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 58,733
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments - 398,499
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 305,015
Totals S 514,278 S 532,666

$305,015 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the
Authority’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the Net Pension Liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense in future reporting periods as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2024 S (48,494)
2025 (141,024)
2026 (270,222)
2027 136,337
2028 -
Thereafter -
Total S (323,403)

Pension Plan Data

Information about the VRS Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is also available in the separately
issued VRS 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual Report). A copy of the 2022 VRS
Annual Report may be downloaded from the VRS website at
http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2022-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System’s
Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-2500.
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Note 6—Aggregate Other Postemployment Benefits Information:

The following is a summary of deferred outflows, deferred inflows, net other postemployment
benefits liabilities, and other postemployment benefits expense for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Deferred Deferred Net OPEB OPEB
Outflows Inflows Liability Expense
Authority Stand-Alone Plan S 53,742 S 142,778 S 185,735 §  (1,550)
VRS OPEB Plan-Group Life Insurance Plan 25,679 24,239 105,912 3,270
Totals S 79,421 § 167,017 S 291,647 S 1,720

Note 7—Roanoke Valley Resource Authority Other Postemployment Benefits:

Plan Description

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 5, the Authority administers a single-employer
defined benefit healthcare plan, The Roanoke Valley Resource Authority Postretirement Benefits
Plan. The Plan provides for participation by eligible retirees and their dependents in the health
insurance programs available to employees. The Plan does not issue publicly available financial
reports.

Benefits Provided

The Plan will provide retiring employees the option to continue health insurance offered by the
Authority. Employees are eligible for the program after ten (10) years of service to the Authority.
The benefits, employee contributions, and the employer contributions are governed by the
Authority’s Board and can be amended through Board action.

Plan Membership

At June 30, 2022 (measurement date), the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Total active employees with coverage 19
Total retiree with coverage 1
Total 20

Contributions

The Authority does not pre-fund benefits; therefore, no assets are accumulated in a trust fund. The
current funding policy is to pay benefits directly from general assets on a pay-as-you-go basis. The
funding requirements are established and may be amended by the Authority’s Board. The amount
paid by the Authority for OPEB as the benefits came due during the year ended June 30, 2023 was
$19,089.
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Note 7—Roanoke Valley Resource Authority Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

Total OPEB Liability

The Authority’s total OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022. The total OPEB liability used
to calculate the total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June
30, 2022.

Actuarial Assumptions
The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following

actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise
specified:

Healthcare cost trend rate Starts at an initial rate of 7.50% decreasing to an ultimate rate of
4.50%.

Salary Increases 3.50% per annum

Discount Rate 4.09% per annum

Mortality rates were as follows:

e General Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 General Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully
generational using Scale MP-2021.

e Surviving Spouses: SOA Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor Headcount Weighted Mortality Table
fully generational using Scale MP-2021.

e Disabled Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree Headcount Weighted Mortality
Table fully generational using Scale MP-2021.

The date of the most recent actuarial experience study for which significant assumptions were based
is not available.

The sole (and only significant) change to the actuarial assumptions since the valuation dated June
30, 2021 was an increase in the discount rate from 2.19% to 4.09%. That change was necessary to
updated the discount rate assumption based on the yield for 20-year-tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds as of June 30, 2022 (measurement date).
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Note 7—Roanoke Valley Resource Authority Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

Discount Rate
The discount rate is 4.09% per annum.
Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Liability

Balances at June 30, 2021 S 254,573
Changes for the year:
Service cost 23,242
Interest 5,876
Differences between expected and actual experience (72,523)
Changes of assumptions (6,344)
Contributions - employer (19,089)
Net changes S (68,838)
Balances at June 30, 2022 S 185,735

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following amounts present the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the total
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
(3.09%) or one percentage point higher (5.09%) than the current discount rate:

Rate
1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(3.09%) (4.09%) (5.09%)
S 194,382 § 185,735 § 176,917

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the Authority, as well as what the total OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage
point lower (6.50% decreasing to an ultimate rate of 3.50%) or one percentage point higher (8.50%
decreasing to an ultimate rate of 5.50%) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare Cost Trend Rate
1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.50% decreasing to an (7.5% decreasing to an (8.50% decreasing to an
utlimate rate of 3.50%) utlimate rate of 4.50%) utlimate rate of 5.50%)
$ 168,754 S 185,735 S 204,777
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Note 7—Roanoke Valley Resource Authority Other Postemployment Benefits: (Continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the Authority recognized OPEB expense in the amount of $(1,550).
At June 30, 2023, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resouces Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience S - S 114,483
Changes in assumptions 34,653 28,295
Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 19,089
Total S 53,742 S 142,778

$19,089 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from the Authority’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the total
OPEB liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. Amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources will be recognized in OPEB expense in future reporting
periods as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2024 S  (30,667)

2025 (57,742)

2026 (19,716)
Thereafter

Additional disclosures on changes in total OPEB liability, related ratios, and employer contributions
can be found in the required supplementary information following the notes to the financial
statements.

Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan):

Plan Description

The Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan was established pursuant to §51.1-500 et seq. of the Code of
Virginia, as amended, and which provides the authority under which benefit terms are established or
may be amended. All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the state agencies, teachers, and
employees of participating political subdivisions are automatically covered by the VRS GLI Plan upon
employment. This is a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan administered by the Virginia Retirement
System (the System), along with pensions and other OPEB plans, for public employer groups in the
Commonwealth of Virginia.
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Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

Plan Description (Continued)

In addition to the Basic GLI benefit, members are also eligible to elect additional coverage for
themselves as well as a spouse or dependent children through the Optional GLI Plan. For members
who elect the optional group life insurance coverage, the insurer bills employers directly for the
premiums. Employers deduct these premiums from members’ paychecks and pay the premiums to
the insurer. Since this is a separate and fully insured plan, it is not included as part of the GLI Plan
OPEB.

The specific information for GLI Program OPEB, including eligibility, coverage and benefits described
below:

Eligible Employees

The GLI Plan was established July 1, 1960, for state employees, teachers, and employees of political
subdivisions that elect the plan. Basic GLI coverage is automatic upon employment. Coverage ends
for employees who leave their position before retirement eligibility or who take a refund of their
accumulated retirement member contributions and accrued interest.

Benefit Amounts

The GLI Plan is a defined benefit plan with several components. The natural death benefit is equal to
the employee’s covered compensation rounded to the next highest thousand and then doubled. The
accidental death benefit is double the natural death benefit. In addition to basic natural and
accidental death benefits, the plan provides additional benefits provided under specific
circumstances that include the following: accidental dismemberment benefit, seatbelt benefit,
repatriation benefit, felonious assault benefit, and accelerated death benefit option. The benefit
amounts are subject to a reduction factor. The benefit amount reduces by 25% on January 1
following one calendar year of separation. The benefit amount reduces by an additional 25% on each
subsequent January 1 until it reaches 25% of its original value. For covered members with at least 30
years of service credit, the minimum benefit payable was set at $8,000 by statute in 2015. This will
be increased annually based on the VRS Plan 2 cost-of-living adjustment calculation. The minimum
benefit adjusted for the COLA was $8,984 as of June 30, 2023.

Contributions

The contribution requirements for the GLI Plan are governed by §51.1-506 and §51.1-508 of the Code
of Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to state agencies and
school divisions by the Virginia General Assembly. The total rate for the GLI Plan was 1.34% of
covered employee compensation. This was allocated into an employee and an employer component
using a 60/40 split. The employee component was 0.80% (1.34% x 60%) and the employer component
was 0.54% (1.34% x 40%). Employers may elect to pay all or part of the employee contribution;
however, the employer must pay all of the employer contribution. Each employer’s contractually
required employer contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2023, was 0.54% of covered
employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2021. The actuarially determined rate, when combined with employee
contributions, was expected to finance the costs of benefits payable during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the GLI Plan from the
entity were $10,780 and $25,936 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

Contributions (Continued)

In June 2022, the Commonwealth made a special contribution of approximately $30.4 million to the
Group Life Insurance Plan. This special payment was authorized by a budget amendment included in
Chapter 1 of the 2022 Appropriation Act, and is classified as a non-employer contribution.

GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to the GLI Plan OPEB

At June 30, 2023, the entity reported a liability of $105,912 for its proportionate share of the Net GLI
OPEB Liability. The Net GLI OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2022 and the total GLI OPEB
liability used to calculate the Net GLI OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation
performed as of June 30, 2021 and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022. The
covered employer’s proportion of the Net GLI OPEB Liability was based on the covered employer’s
actuarially determined employer contributions to the GLI Plan for the year ended June 30, 2022
relative to the total of the actuarially determined employer contributions for all participating
employers. At June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021, the participating employer’s proportion was
0.00880% and 0.00973%, respectively.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the participating employer recognized GLI OPEB expense of
$3,270. Since there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of
the GLI OPEB expense was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion.

At June 30, 2023, the employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the GLI OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience S 8,387 § 4,249
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on GLI OPEB program investments - 6,618
Change in assumptions 3,950 10,316
Changes in proportionate share 2,562 3,056
Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 10,780

Total S 25,679 S 24,239




ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

GLI OPEB Liabilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to the GLI Plan OPEB (Continued)

$10,780 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB resulting from the
employer’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the Net GLI OPEB Liability in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB will be
recognized in the GLI OPEB expense in future reporting periods as follows:

Year Ended June 30

2024 S (2,083)

2025 (2,167)

2026 (5,616)

2027 850

2028 (324)
Thereafter

Actuarial Assumptions

The total GLI OPEB liability was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, using the
Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2022.
The assumptions include several employer groups as noted below. Salary increases and mortality
rates included herein are for relevant employer groups. Information for other groups can be
referenced in the VRS Annual Report.

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increases, including inflation:
Locality - General employees 3.50%-5.35%

Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of investment expenses,
including inflation

Mortality Rates - Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - General Employees

Pre-Retirement:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Employee Rates projected generationally; males set
forward 2 years; 105% of rates for females set forward 3 years

Post-Retirement:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Healthy Retiree Rates projected ge0.4nerationally; 95% of
rates for males set forward 2 years; 95% of rates for females set forward 1 year
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Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

Mortality Rates - Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - General Employees (Continued)

Post-Disablement:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted General Disabled Rates projected generationally; 110% of rates
for males set forward 3 years; 110% of rates for females set forward 2 years

Beneficiaries and Survivors:
Pub-2010 Amount Weighted Safety Contingent Annuitant Rates projected generationally

Mortality Improvement Scale:

Rates projected generationally with Modified MP-2020 Improvement Scale that is 75% of the
MP-2020 rates

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the
change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019.
Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as
follows:

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post- Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. For

retirement healthy, and disabled) future mortality improvements, replace load with a
modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020
Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set

separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid;
changed final retirement age from 75 to 80 for all

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and

Withdrawal Rates . .
service decrement through 9 years of service

Disability Rates No change
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability No change
Discount Rate No change

Remainder of page left blank intentionally.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

NET GLI OPEB Liability

The net OPEB liability (NOL) for the GLI Plan represents the plan’s total OPEB liability determined in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 74, less the associated fiduciary net position. As of the
measurement date of June 30, 2022, NOL amounts for the GLI Plan is as follows (amounts expressed
in thousands):

GLI OPEB
Plan
Total GLI OPEB Liability S 3,672,085
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 2,467,989
GLI Net OPEB Liability (Asset) S 1,204,096
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total GLI OPEB Liability 67.21%

The total GLI OPEB liability is calculated by the System’s actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net
position is reported in the System’s financial statements. The net GLI OPEB liability is disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of GASB Statement No. 74 in the System’s notes to the financial
statements and required supplementary information.

Remainder of page left blank intentionally.
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Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on the System’s investments was determined using a log-
normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of System’s investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of
return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Weighted

Long-Term Arithmetic Average

Target Long-term Long-term

Asset Expected Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation  Rate of Return  Rate of Return*
Public Equity 34.00% 5.71% 1.94%
Fixed Income 15.00% 2.04% 0.31%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 4.78% 0.67%
Real Assets 14.00% 4.47% 0.63%
Private Equity 14.00% 9.73% 1.36%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.73% 0.22%
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 3.00% 6.55% 0.20%
Total 100.00% 5.33%
Inflation 2.50%
Expected arithmetic nominal return** 7.83%

*The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.83%. However, one-year returns do not take
into account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected
return for the System, stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various
economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately
provide a median return of 6.72%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.

**0On October 10, 2019, the VRS Board elected a long-term rate of return of 6.75%, which was roughly
at the 40t percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation at that time,
providing a median return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%.
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Note 8—Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan (OPEB Plan): (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total GLI OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made in
accordance with the VRS funding policy and at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution
rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees. Through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the rate
contributed by the entity for the GLI OPEB will be subject to the portion of the VRS Board-certified
rates that are funded by the Virginia General Assembly which was 100% of the actuarially determined
contribution rate. From July 1, 2022 on, employers are assumed to contribute 100% of the actuarially
determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the GLI OPEB’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of eligible employees.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total GLI OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the Employer’s Proportionate Share of the Net GLI OPEB Liability to Changes in
the Discount Rate

The following presents the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB liability using the
discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower
(5.75%) or one percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

Rate
1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Authority's proportionate
share of the GLI Plan
Net OPEB Liability S 154,115 S 105,912 S 66,958

GLI Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the GLI Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the separately issued
VRS 2022 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (Annual Report). A copy of the 2022 VRS Annual
Report may be downloaded from the VRS website at
http://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2022-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System’s
Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.

Note 9—Accrued Landfill Closure:

The Authority currently has responsibility for closure and post-closure care related to two landfill
sites and two transfer stations. The landfills include the old landfill site, formerly owned by the
Roanoke Valley Regional Solid Waste Management Board, which closed in 1994 and the Smith Gap
landfill placed in service during 1994. The new landfill has a total estimated remaining life of
approximately 23.8 years, which is comprised of Phase I-VI (constructed capacity) with a total
estimated remaining life of approximately 2.7 years and Phase VII-IX (unconstructed capacity) with a
total estimated remaining life of approximately 21.1 years. State and Federal laws and regulations
require that the Authority place a final cover on its landfill(s) when closed and perform certain
maintenance and monitoring functions for a minimum of thirty years after closure.
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Note 9—Accrued Landfill Closure: (Continued)

Closure costs will be paid as closure occurs and post-closure care costs will be paid only near or after
the date that the landfill(s) stop accepting waste. The Authority reports a portion of these closure
and post-closure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on the percentage of
landfill capacity used in existing cells. The total liability recorded at June 30, 2023, is $17,850,786
and includes $3,387,653 designated for the old landfill site (now closed); $14,005,879 designated for
the new Smith Gap landfill; and $457,254 for the transfer stations. Total closure and post-closure
cost for all opened landfill cells at Smith Gap is estimated at $15,555,124, of which 90.04% has been
recognized based on usage to date. As such, $1,549,245 or 9.96% of the total estimated liability will
be recognized in future periods as the usage percentage increases at the Smith Gap Landfill. The Old
Landfill and Transfer Station estimates are recorded at 100% of their total liability estimates.

The Authority will periodically update these closure and post-closure cost estimates and, as
necessary, make revisions to reflect any significant changes in estimates due to inflation or
deflation, technology, or changes in applicable laws and regulations.

Closure and post-closure care requirements are mandated under the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) rule, “Solid Waste Disposal Facility Criteria”, and are subject to periodic
revisions by the EPA.

Federal and state regulations require owners of municipal solid waste landfills to demonstrate
financial responsibility for closure care, post-closure care and corrective costs arising from the
operations of such facilities. The Authority has demonstrated financial assurance requirements for
closure and post-closure care by the issuance of an irrevocable standby letter of credit in
combination with the submission of a Local Government Financial Test through the Virginia
Department of Environmental Quality in accordance section 9VAC20-70 of the Virginia Administrative
Code.

Note 10—Commitments, Contingencies, and Other Information:

From time to time the Authority is involved in litigation in the normal course of operations. It is the
opinion of the Authority’s management that any adverse outcomes related to litigation would not
have a material impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Authority as of and for
the year ended June 30, 2023.

Note 11—Arbitrage Rebate Compliance:

As of June 30, 2023 and for the year then ended, the Authority was not liable for any amounts due
under current rules governing arbitrage earnings.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 12—Risk Management:

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees and others; and natural disasters. The
Authority participates with other localities in the Virginia Municipal Group Self Insurance public
entity risk pool and the Virginia Association of Counties Risk Pool for certain coverage noted below.
Each member of these risk pools jointly and severally agrees to assume, pay and discharge any
liability. The Authority pays the risk pools contributions and assessments based upon classifications
and rates into designated cash reserve funds out of which expenses of the pools, claims and awards
are to be paid. In the event of a loss, deficit, or depletion of all available funds and/or excess
insurance, each pool may assess all members in the proportion to which the premium of each bears
to the total premiums of all members in the year in which such deficit occurs. The Authority carries
insurance coverage for all other risk of loss. Settled claims have not exceeded coverage in the
current or prior three fiscal years.

Worker’s Compensation - Worker’s Compensation Insurance is provided through the Virginia Risk Sharing
Association. During 2022-2023, the total premiums paid were $41,965. Benefits are those afforded
through the State of Virginia as outlined in the Code of Virginia Section 65.2-100; premiums are based
upon covered payroll, job rates and claims experience.

General Liability and Other - The Authority carries general liability, machinery, property and other
insurance through policies administered by the Virginia Risk Sharing Association. General liability and
business automobile have a $1,000,000 combined single limit. Machinery coverage and property
insurance are covered as per statement of values. Public officials’ liability with a $1,000,000 limit is
covered through a policy with the Commonwealth of Virginia. Total premiums paid for year ended June
30, 2023 were $98,039.

Healthcare - Healthcare insurance coverage is provided to Authority employees through Roanoke
County’s self-insured health insurance program. The Authority’s employees pay a monthly amount
based upon estimates from the claims processor that should cover administrative expenses, stop loss
insurance premiums, and claims. An excess coverage insurance policy covers each individual’s pooled
claims in excess of $200,000. The Authority has no claims payable as of June 30, 2023.

Note 13—Related Party Transactions:

The following table summarizes approximate tipping fees received and accounts receivable from
charter members as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023:

Tipping Fees Accounts Receivable

2023 2023
City of Roanoke S 2,413,116 S 222,560
County of Roanoke 2,149,402 193,334
City of Salem 846,153 74,194
Town of Vinton 184,438 17,110
S 5,593,109 $ 507,198

Remainder of page left blank intentionally.
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Note 14— Upcoming Pronouncements:

Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, addresses (1) practice issues that have been identified during
implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and (2) accounting and financial
reporting for financial guarantees. The effective dates differ based on the requirements of the
Statement, ranging from April 2022 to for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023.

Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections - an amendment of GASB Statement
No. 62, provides more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information
for making decisions or assessing accountability for accounting changes and error corrections. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023.

Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, updates the recognition and measurement guidance for
compensated absences. It aligns the recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model
and amends certain previously required disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023.

Management is currently evaluating the impact these standards will have on the financial statements
when adopted.
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of the Authority's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - Pension Plan
For the Measurement Dates of June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2022

Roanoke County, Virginia's Pension Plan (a cost-sharing multiple employer plan administered by the VRS)

Proportionate Pension Plan's

Share of the NPL Fiduciary Net

Proportion of as a Percentage of Position as a

the Net Pension Proportionate Covered Covered Payroll Percentage of Total
Date Liability (NPL) Share of the NPL Employee Payroll (3)/(4) Pension Liability
(1 2) (3) “4) (5) (6)

2022 3.5672% S 1,346,095 $ 1,913,347 70.35% 87.97%
2021 4.0387% 892,849 2,002,539 44.59% 92.71%
2020 3.9949% 2,311,725 2,188,818 105.62% 79.55%
2019 3.9322% 1,698,543 1,979,670 85.80% 83.96%
2018 3.8000% 1,282,039 1,860,564 68.91% 86.53%
2017 3.5259% 1,308,197 1,630,826 80.22% 84.76%
2016 2.8980% 1,324,942 1,262,032 104.98% 80.43%
2015 2.7704% 970,264 1,178,061 82.36% 84.31%
2014 2.7738% 923,522 1,117,882 82.61% 84.61%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to the 2014 valuation is not available. However, additional years
will be included as they become available.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of Employer Contributions - Pension Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2014 through June 30, 2023

Roanoke County, Virginia's Pension Plan (a cost-sharing multiple employer plan administered by the VRS)

Contributions in

Contributions

Relation to Contributions as a % of

Contractually Contractually Deficiency Employer's Covered

Required Required (Excess) Covered Payroll

Date Contribution Contribution (1) - (2) Payroll 2)/(4)

m* ) (3) 4 5)

2023 305,015 305,015 1,909,925 15.97%
2022 262,991 262,991 1,913,347 13.75%
2021 277,405 277,405 2,002,539 13.85%
2020 246,754 246,754 2,188,818 11.27%
2019 231,403 231,403 1,979,670 11.69%
2018 200,782 200,782 1,860,564 10.79%
2017 181,460 181,460 1,630,826 11.13%
2016 142,146 142,146 1,262,032 11.26%
2015 132,238 132,238 1,178,061 11.23%
2014 112,745 112,745 1,117,882 10.09%

* Excludes contributions (mandatory and match on voluntary) to the defined contribution portion of the Hybrid plan.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Notes to Required Supplementary - Pension Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Roanoke County, Virginia's Pension Plan (a cost-sharing multiple employer plan administered by the VRS)

Changes of benefit terms - There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions
since the prior actuarial valuation.

Changes of assumptions - The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the
change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the
actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

All Others (Non-10 Largest) - Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. For
healthy, and disabled) future mortality improvements, replace load with a
modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020

Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set
separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid;
changed final retirement age

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and
service decrement through 9 years of service

Disability Rates No change
Salary Scale No change
Line of Duty Disability No change
Discount Rate No change
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Post Employment Health Coverage
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Valuation Date: 6/30/2022
Measurement Date: 6/30/2022

No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB 75 to pay related benefits.

Methods and assumptions used to determine OPEB liability:

Actuarial Cost Method

Entry age normal level % of salary

Discount Rate

4.09% per annum

Inflation

2.50% per year

Healthcare Trend Rate

Starts at an initial rate of 7.50% decreasing to an ultimate
rate of 4.50%.

Salary Increase Rates

3.50% per annum

Retirement Age

The average age at retirement is 62.

Mortality Rates

General Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 General Headcount
Weighted Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-
2021. Surviving Spouses: SOA Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor
Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully generational using
Scale MP-2021. Disabled Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 Non-Safety
Disabled Retiree Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully
generational using Scale MP-2021.




ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of Authority's Share of Net OPEB Liability
Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan
For the Measurement Dates of June 30, 2017 through June 30, 2022

Employer's
Proportionate Share
Employer's of the Net GLI OPEB
Employer's Proportionate Liability Plan Fiduciary
Proportion of the Share of the Employer's as a Percentage of Net Position as a
Net GLI OPEB Net GLI OPEB Covered Covered Payroll Percentage of Total
Date Liability Liability Payroll (3)/(4) GLI OPEB Liability
1) (2) 3) (4) (5) (6)
2022 0.00880% $ 105,912 $§ 1,913,347 5.54% 67.21%
2021 0.00973% 113,284 2,002,539 5.66% 67.45%
2020 0.00977% 163,037 2,188,818 7.45% 52.64%
2019 0.00980% 158,996 1,979,670 8.03% 52.00%
2018 0.00956% 145,236 1,860,564 7.81% 51.22%
2017 0.00883% 132,892 1,630,826 8.15% 48.86%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to the 2017 valuation is not available. However,
additional years will be included as they become available.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of Employer Contributions
Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan
For the Years Ended June 30, 2017 through June 30, 2023

Contributions in Contributions

Relation to Contributions as a % of

Contractually Contractually Deficiency Employer's Covered

Required Required (Excess) Covered Payroll

Date Contribution Contribution (1) - (2) Payroll 2)/(4)

(1 ) (3) 4) (5)

2023 S 10,780 S 10,780 - S 1,996,313 0.54%
2022 10,332 10,332 - 1,913,347 0.54%
2021 10,814 10,814 - 2,002,539 0.54%
2020 11,382 11,382 - 2,188,818 0.52%
2019 10,294 10,294 - 1,979,670 0.52%
2018 9,675 9,675 - 1,860,564 0.52%
2017 8,480 8,480 - 1,630,826 0.52%

Schedule is intended to show information for 10 years. Information prior to the 2017 is not available. However, additional years will be
included as they become available.



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Notes to Required Supplementary Information
Group Life Insurance (GLI) Plan
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Changes of benefit terms - There have been no actuarially material changes to the System benefit provisions
since the prior actuarial valuation.

Changes of assumptions - The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period from July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, except the
change in the discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the
actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

Non-Largest Ten Locality Employers - General Employees
Mortality Rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement Update to Pub-2010 public sector mortality tables. For

healthy, and disabled) future mortality improvements, replace load with a
modified Mortality Improvement Scale MP-2020
Retirement Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience for Plan 1; set

separate rates based on experience for Plan 2/Hybrid;
changed final retirement age from 75 to 80 for all

Withdrawal Rates Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and
service decrement through 9 years of service

Disability Rates No change

Salary Scale No change

Line of Duty Disability No change

Discount Rate No change
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Statistical Section

This part of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s annual comprehensive financial
report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the
information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the Authority’s overall financial health.

Contents
Financial Trends
Page
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand 60-62
how the Authority’s financial performance and well-being have changed
over time.
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors 63-67
affecting the Authority’s ability to generate its operating revenue.
Debt Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the 68-69
affordability of the Authority’s current levels of outstanding debt and the
Authority’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.
Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the 70-71
reader understand the environment within which the Authority’s financial
activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with
other authorities.
Operating Information
These schedules contain information about the Authority’s operations and 72-73

resources to help the reader understand how the Authority’s financial
information relates to the services the Authority provides and the
activities it performs.
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ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudited)
(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 5

Gain (Loss) Total Non-
on Interest Operating
Fiscal Interest Sale of and Fiscal Income
Year Revenue Assets Charges (Expenses)
2023 S 333,864 S 107,951 § (586,115) $ (144,300)
2022 27,500 299,355 (640,213) (313,358)
2021 24,266 - (650,970) (626,704)
2020 207,474 (16,975) (500,843) (310,344)
2019 295,546 128,514 (539,514) (115,454)
2018 165,909 (47,796) (533,080) (414,967)
2017 158,602 - (147,559) 11,043
2016 106,683 106,683
2015 69,368 - 69,368
2014 46,812 312,156 358,968

Source: RVRA audited financial statements



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Annual Tonnage Received
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(unaudited)

(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 6

Fiscal Municipal Commercial Private Residential Total

Year Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage Tonnage
2023 103,699 126,068 46,333 11,971 288,071
2022 104,131 105,391 50,466 11,683 271,671
2021 108,815 67,076 44,011 12,683 232,585
2020 109,912 75,927 44,691 10,728 241,258
2019 106,915 100,434 43,838 11,805 262,992
2018 99,326 103,139 38,854 10,844 252,163
2017 96,459 84,839 29,708 10,158 221,164
2016 84,167 46,854 23,553 9,329 163,903
2015 82,865 44,417 22,916 8,541 158,739
2014 85,773 39,022 26,758 9,020 160,573

Source: RVRA reports provided by staff



ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY

Principal Customers
(unaudited)
(accrual basis of accounting)

Table 7

FY 2023 FY 2014
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
Amount of Total Amount of Total

City of Roanoke S 2,413,116 15.41% S 1,966,115 24.20%
County of Roanoke 2,149,402 13.73% 1,833,977 22.57%
Waste Management Inc 1,776,069 11.35% 904,136 11.13%
First Piedmont Corporation 841,145 5.37% 446,394 5.49%
County Waste of SWVA, LLC 1,516,572 9.69% N/A 0.00%
City of Salem 846,153 5.40% N/A 0.00%
Tidy Services 837,394 5.35% 212,514 2.62%
Residential Disposal Program 715,753 4.57% 390,325 4.80%
Republic Services 1,047,455 6.69% 210,918 2.60%
Town of Vinton 184,438 1.18% 162,818 2.00%
Subtotal largest customers 12,327,497 78.74% 6,127,197 75.41%
Balance From other Customers 3,327,789 21.26% 1,998,379 24.59%
Grand Totals S 15,655,286 100.00% S 8,125,576 100.00%

Source: RVRA reports provided by staff



Table 8
ROANOKE VALLEY RESOURCE AUTHORITY
Disposal Fees Per Ton
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(unaudited)
(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Municipal Commercial Private Residential
Year Rate Rate Rate Rate

2023 S 55.00 S 64.50 S 64.50 S 55.00
2022 53.50 62.75 62.75 53.50
2021 53.50 62.75 62.75 53.50
2020 53.50 61.50 61.50 53.50
2019 51.50 61.50 61.50 51.50
2018 49.50 59.50 59.50 49.50
2017 49.50 59.50 59.50 49.50
2016 49.00 59.00 59.00 49.00
2015 48.00 58.00 58.00 48.00
2014 47.00 57.00 57.00 57.00

Source RVRA Budget Book



L10ZA4 Ut VHAY 2u3 pautol waes jo Ayy ayy

9107 ‘0€ aunr Ysnolyl 4107 ‘0€ dunf Jo se SuLpuRISINO SPUOQ SNUSAJ AUe dARY J0U pIp AlLioyiny ay] 210N

sisAjeuy J1WOU0D3 JO NeaJng aY3 WO BIRP SWODU| eu0stdd pue uoieindod

ALI0yIny 221n0say A3))eA 9)0OUROY SIUSWIL]S JelduRUL) PAILPNY

UOJULA pue A31) ayoueoy ‘A3uno) ayoueoy wolj syoday jerdueuty sAisuayaldwo) jenuuy :321n0s %

1
%00°0 - %00°0 - %00°0 - %00°0 - - - 10T
%00°0 - %00°0 - %00°0 - %00°0 - - - 13014
%00°0 - %00°0 - %00°0 - %00°0 - - - 910T
%G€°0 €8/ %GE°0 vy T %6¥°0 10T %G€°0 €le - 0000000 £10T
%G€E°0 yAA %SE°0 9T¥‘T %6¥°0 961 %G€E°0 607 G/6°L00°) 67899561 810C
%CE0 L %CE0 0Z€°C %S0 881 %CE0 10C 9G6/¥S9 €€4°78L°8) 610C
%LE0 LL %LE0 817C %L¥°0 08l %LE0 6l - y67°L9L°81 070t
%¥G°0 860°L %¥S°0 GEP‘E %19°0 8/ %¥G°0 18T - 106‘8€8°LT 120t
%0S°0 190°L %0G°0 9le‘e %LG°0 99T %0G°0 GLT - 16896697 (44014
%G¥°0 £00°L S %S0 ozl‘e $ %0G°0 [414 S %S¥°0 09¢ $ - PEE‘€60°GT £€20C
awodu| epde) 1ad awodu| ejide) Jad awodu| epde) Jad awodu| ejide) Jad sasea sjuawied IEETN
Jeuosiad 30 Jeuosiad 1O Jeuosiad jo Jeuosiad jo Jeyder uojesuadwo) Jedst

aleys e sy aleys e sy aleys e sy aleys e sy A31jed0 pue
Lwia)es jo A3 UOJUIA £31) axouroy Ajuno?) ayoueoy spuog anuaAay

6 d1qeL

ALRIOHLNV 32NO0S3Y AFTIVA INONVOY

(pa3tpneun)

SIeaj Jedsid ua] 3sen

adA) Aq 19aq SulpueisinQ jo sorjey



*SpJ023J 395pNnq pue |elduRUL} YYAY :924N0S

‘uote|nNded
2A0Qe U} UL PapN)OUL JOU 3I9M SIsudXd UoLsUel) 3S3Y) JI H8F 788 US2J SARY PINOM SINUSASI 31de|leAe 3au ayl ‘N iypue] den yjws oyl 03 peold e jo uol3a1dwod ayy uodn paindut
2 J0U |)IM Jey) 350D Jesodsip pue uoljelsodsuel} jeuolilppe 03 pajeial a1om sasuadxa Suljelado pauoljuswaloge Syl )|L4PUe] JBYIOUR 0} PaJAALSP Allieiodwd) sem disem se /0L LTy TS
Aq sasuadxa Suijesado pasealoul uoljisuely siyl ‘93Sem jo Jallodsuely paseq peod e 0} paseq |led B woly Suiuonisuely uesaq Ajoyiny ayy ‘1zoz ‘0 aunf Sulpus Jeak jedsty ayy suing

"0 40 o13eJ 98RI9A0D e aJinbas spuoq jJualind sAiLioyiny ay |

9107 YSnoJay) 107 woJj Surpueisino 3gap Aue aAey jou pip AjLioyiny ayl, 1S9JON MW

1
eu pe8LLE L - - - ¥66°098°9 88€‘7/L‘S - 718°9F 9/5°GTL‘8 107
eu 719°8L7°) - - - €6LVTL'L GOv‘€0S‘8 - 89£°69 L£0PEV‘S «610T
eu (AW TAN - - - 80€ ‘Y759 768°678°8 - £89°901 691°cvL‘8 9107
€€'6 079°€v0°T 69061 - 69061 812971 0} 8€E0LLT) - 709°8G1 9€.°110°T) 1102
10°T pOE‘ce8‘l Gy G88 TIRANA% 4 LGLEEY 800°150°7) 1LEv88clL - 606°G91 cov‘gLLiEl 8107
0 179°789°C LLLOEE ) G6G ‘9PS 911v8/ ¥90°989C) G89°89¢°Gl - 996 66T 6€1°€L0°S) 6107
1670 0v¥6°0LZ°L LIGELE‘L 151806 09€°608 06Z°670°€) 061°00€ V1 - vLi¥‘ 10T 9LL760'Y) 0207
(0z°0) (£75090) 960°8L7°1 807°1G¥ 888978 YrT9L6°C) LLLGLLE) - 997‘vT LGP 169 €L 1207
057 64G°1L0°Y €11679°1 GOv‘08. 80/‘8¥8 6LL6VL L) 8GE“ 17T S) - 005/ 8G8°c61°GL 20T
6£°C $ 96£T7ESy S G¥6°868°1L S 8LL°8/L S LT80TLL S SPLY9SILL $ 10L°L60°9L  $ 1G6°L0L $ p98°eLe $ 987°G59°G1L €207
olney An_.mv SONUSAIY 9JIAI9S 1saldalju| _ma_u:._._n_ An_v A>u___n_m__ liLpue) Amv SONUIAIY 2uwoduj 2Wwodu| SONUIAQY Jes )\
aesano) a]qejleAy 19qeq |elol aJniny ul asueyd $S0J9 19410 JUSWISIAU| Supesado Jeostd

19N pue uoijerdaidap
9DIAISS 3g2Q Suipn)doxa) sasuadxy

SupesadQ :sso

(paypneun)
Siea\ |edst4 ua] iseT
95eI9A0) SNUSASY Paspald
ALNOHLNY 3024N0S3¥ AITIVA INONVOY
0} 9qelL



sisk]euy J1WOUO0DT 4O Nealng Sy} WoJj eIep aWodU| euU0SIad pue uoleindod

*£10T ‘0€ dunf Suipua Jeak Jedsty ay) BuLINp YYAY pautof waes jo A1) ,

wia)es pue uojuLA ‘A31) ayoueoy ‘A3uno) ayoueoy wodj syloday jeldueuld aAlsusayaldwor jenuuy  :924n0S
- - - - %SG 887ty 000°L¥S 786V 1518 10T
- - - - %G'v 8Ly ey 000°001}‘6G1°G 1518 610t
- - - - %9°€ 8Ly ey 000°698‘GEF“S 1518 910t
%Ly Ly0‘8Y 000°£€0°8G.L‘S 675G %L € Ly0‘8Y 000°£€0°8GL‘S G8l‘g £10T
%Y € 78€‘81 000°08.°G8.L°S 798°G2 %Y € 8¢ ‘81 000°08.°G8.L°S G908 810t
%6°C 0986 000°708°796°S €v9°6t %6°C 0986 000°708°796°S 960°8 610¢
%16 I ANAS 000996529 o€ ‘sz %18 [ ANAS 0009964529 ¥01‘8 020t
%0y 68%°€S 000°Z1Z°16€9 o€ ‘sz %9°€ 68%°€S 000°Z1Z°16€9 ¥0L‘8 120T
%9°€ L16°YS 0009168859 09062 %8°C 116G 0009168859 120°8 20t
%6°C pEyiLS S 000°£8.400°L Y6V %L"T vev LS § 000°£8L400°L $ £70°8 £20C
ajey awodu| awoou| uolyeindod ajey awoou| awoou| uonyeindod Jea)
juswAoldwaun ejde) uad Jeuos.iad juswAoldwaun ejde) uad Jeuos.iad 1eost4
swajes jo L1 UOJUIA

%L G8E6E 000°G€6°GL6°E €166 %C" G 887ty 000°L¥S 786V €026 ¥102
%9°G G8E6E 000°G€6°GL6°E 07€‘66 VA4 887ty 000°001}‘6G1°G 695°€6 610t
%Ly G8E6E 000°G€6°GL6°E 18966 %5 € L1G°GY 000°698°GEF*S GLL'€6 910t
%S 'v Ly6°0F 000075060 71966 %9°€ L¥0‘8Y 000°£€0°8GL‘S v76°€6 £10T
%L € (XY AA4 000°2L6“ LTy 806°66 %€ 78€ 8k 000°08.°G8.L°S GEL €6 810t
%8°C 96 L 000°€SL /8L Y 07666 %L"T 098°6F 000°708°796°S 749°€6 610¢
%Ly Loy ey 000845 LVEY 07666 %0°L A4S 000996529 G08°€6 020t
%€ G LLT'SY 000°09888¥ ‘v L1000} %9°€ 68%°€S 000°Z1Z°16€9 67696 120T
%8'v LTL9Y 000°699°879% £88°66 %9°C 116G 0009168859 9596 20t
%L € 665°05 S 000°Z6¥°700°S  $ 7€9°66 %9°C yEyLS $ 000°£8L400°L $ 60996 £20¢
ajey awoou| awoou| uolyeindod ajey awodu| awodu| uoryeindod Jleap
juswAoldwaun ejde) Jad Jeuos.iad juswAoldwaun ejde) uad Jeuos.lad 1eosty

f1) 9joueoy

A3uno) axoueoy

Ll olqel

(paypneun)

Ssiea\ |edst{ ua] 3se

uoljyewuoju| dwydeaSowaq

ALRIOHLNV 32YNO0STY AFTTVA INONVON

-70-



juswiiedaq Juawdo)aAag dlwouod3 AJUN0Y) 3YouRoy :924N0S

66¥-05¢ 9jeAld ol - - - sliex3 111
66¥-0SC 9jeALlld 6 - - - 0d>9paw
66¥-05C 9jeALld 8 66¥-0GT 9jeAlld ol Jeuwnem
666-005 jeALlld L 666-009 jeAlld 6 Auedwo) aduelnsu| ayeis)yY
- - - 666-005 )eALd 8 $100Q pPUB SMOPULM UlAJRW
- - - 666-00S jeALlld L "PI7 SWaisAS 1q13
666-005 9jeALld S 666-009 9jeALld 9 J33ua) a4e) B AI9A033Y PlaYYIRY
666-005 9jeALlld 9 666-009 jeAlld S Aunwwo) Juswaidy diyspuatid
666-009 9jeALld 4 666-005 9jeAlld 4 13501
+000°L "JA0D 1ed07 € +000°L "JA0D 1ed07 € aouroy jo Auno)
+000°L )eALd z +000‘C )eALd Z J93U9) suotresadQ osied sjom
+000°) "JAO0D 1207 I +000°C "JA0D 1207 I 100425 A3uno) ayoueroy
saafojdwy diysiaump yuey saafojdwy diysiaumo yuey J1aAo)dw3
10 JaquinN 10 JaquinN
141014 €£20T

710 pue £707 SJedA 1edsl4
(pa3ipneun)
sioho)dwig jedidulid
ALROHLNY 32¥NO0S3IY AITTVA INONVOY
¢l 9lqel

-71-



LT 6¢ 6¢ 8¢ 8¢ 8¢ [A%4 [A%4 or oy
} 2 } 2 2 - - - - -

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 }
91 81 81 144 144 T4 LT LT T4 [44
2 2 2 € € € € € € €
[4 [4 [4 € € € S S S 8

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 -

} } } } } } } } } }

2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 [4
€ € € € € € € € € €
14414 G10¢ 910t L1027 810¢ 610¢ 0zot¢ 120t (44114 €70¢

Jea) Jeostd

3009 193png YYAY :92Jn0S
saakojdw3 jej01

JLueydaw Juawdinby
9dURUIIULRW JRISUSD pue SuLp)ing
slojesadQ juswdinby
slojeladQ 91eds
slosiatadng
Sunyeaadp

Josiatadng ssauisng

103eULPI00Y) SALIRAISIULLIPY

aoueul

juswaseury Jelausan
uonje.IstuLlWpY

€l slqel

(pa3tpneun)

SIeaA Jedstq ua] 1se]
Aoy 9)qetiluap] Aq saakojdw3 jo JaquinN
ALMOHLNY 324N0S3Y AITTVA INONVOY

-712-



spJ02aJ A3IoyINy 221n0saYy A3))BA HOUROY :924N0S

4 4 4 € € € € € € € $9)IS U01323110) JO JOqUINN
4 4 4 € € € € € € € SIS PaRiWIad uadQ Jo JaquinN
€ € € ¥ ¥ ¥ 4 4 4 4 SIS PANILULIA JO JSqUINN
slojedlpuj _mu.amu
700°GE6°L  § pLGP98L S ELEVELL S GO9WELT S 69V'SIST S Lbe'WPET § €96°0L9T $ 16G°G/8L $  VIN S VN S 150D Bulddiys
08'%9 96°89 6L°€9 #0°99 18°99 €9°89 08'89 16°0L V/N V/N aSesany
60€°9¥ L 8068y L 16606} €vL 961 YEV‘0ET 76€°107 18L71T GE6TYL V/N V/N a5euuo)
85Z‘T ULT 19€‘T 616T 3443 7€6°C #80°€ 710C V/N V/N sleojiey
Suoj ut Uw.to.n_mcm._._. I)ISeM Jed|ley
0°6€ $ 0°sE $ 0°sE $ 0'Ge $ 0'Ge $ 0'Ge $ 0'Ge $ 0'se $ 0'sE $ 09¢ S 3)ey dIsBM POOM
0'Ly $ 06k $ G6b $ G6v § G6p $ GIG $ G'€S $ G'€S $ G'€S $ 0SS $ 3jey |eljuspisay
04§ $ 065 S G'6S S G'6S S G'6S S 6’19 S 6’19 $ 6L $ 6L ] S 2)ey djeAlld \
0°LS S 0765 $ G6S $ G6S $ G6S $ G19 $ S19 $ S0 $ SL09 S S¥9 S aey |elolawwo) ™
0Ly S 0'6v S G'6v S g6y S 66y S G'lG $ G'€S $ G'€S $ G'€S $ 0SS S ajey eddiuny ~
5994 Jesodslq
¥Z€06¢€ S loL'sey  § vL'or S vLOYTy S 8v9‘0Ly S Sh8ES S 8LLLES $  S9v‘789 S 86v‘669 S wBLLL S s394 Jesodsig
b 9g 005‘v€ L16°LE €Ly [ L19Ly 905‘cy GLELG WLy €€v 8y suopdesuel |
L6€°L [o[ 126L GLLL 687°C 0561 18€°L 0651 0671 €5l (3uno)) sautl
020°6 Is‘e 67€°6 85101 9801 908°LL 67,01 ¥89°C) 18911 696°LL a5euuo)
_Mmoam.—n_ 9]SEM |eljuaplsay
%Sy L %€9°S %0€°L %€0°S 344 %00°S %8€°S %09 %08'¥ %18'% pa12Aday Juadiad
L19°8h) G6L6yL GG6°1GL G20°01Z 669°0¥C 9/8°6¥T 887871 LLP 81T 979857 V21T panypue
Ly o¥ (34 9% 65 LT 9l S } - (s1adedsmau ‘sse)8 ‘pieoqp.ed ‘saLiaiieq) 1aUiQ
GLE 657 667 8Ly 009 129 868 Gl6 690°1 0€0°} saill
181 81 9T LLE 134 L6V 434 €76 €8¢ 1€ 138w
L0V°LL €9%‘8 PELL #0£‘04 LLEOL 12611 #9511 1L9T) T65°LL €97 poom
Am>0m_m Jejol m_m:Umv suoj uL _um_u>um~._ sjeLalew
€£5°091 6€L°8G1 €06°€91 91122 €91°76C 76679 8GZ° 1T G8G°T€T 129112 120882 SUO) UL PaALDSY SISBM
#1027 GL0T 9102 £10T 8107 610T 0202 1202 20T €201
(paypneun)

¥1 S1qel

sJo3edipu| jeyde) pue Suiyesado
ALROHLNY 324N0S3Y AITIVA INONVON

SJeaA 1edsl4 ua] Ise



COMPLIANCE SECTION




RoBiNsON, FARMER, Cox AssociaTes, PLLC

Certified Public Accountants

CPAs | CONSULTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Members of the Board
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority
Roanoke, Virginia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Authorities, Boards,
and Commissions, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the financial
statements of the business-type activities of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
September 19, 2023.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Roanoke Valley
Resource Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Roanoke
Valley Resource Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and
correct, misstatements, on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Roanoke Valley Resource Authority’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with



those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

C;po’z{mw— ) %KUMU«, 47/ Arsociade.

Blacksburg, Virginia
September 19, 2023





